

LANDLORDS BUILDING SAFETY COMPLIANCE POLICY 2024 - 2025

Landlords Building Safety Compliance Policy				
Adopted/Date Reviewed:	October 2023			
Review Period:	1 Year			
Next Review:	October 2025			
Contact Officer:	Danny Wyer, Corporate Head of Asset Management			
Policy Version:	Second Version of a combined format			
Version Reviewed by:	Housing H&S Compliance UK Ltd – 20/09/2024 CLT – 17 October 2024 ELT – 24 October 2024			
Version Approved by:	Operations Committee – 5 November 2024			
Policy Links:	Access for Compliance Inspection & Works Policy			
	Accountable Persons Policy			
	Communal Areas Policy			
	 Health and Safety Policy and Safety Strategy Leasehold Management Policy 			
	Mutual Exchange, Assignment and Sub-Letting Policy			
	 Neighbourhood Management Policy Repairs and Maintenance Policy 			
	Risk Strategy Policy			
	Void Property Management Policy			

Brief Policy Summary:

The overall aim of this policy is to ensure the safety for people living, visiting, and working in properties owned and/or managed by Lincolnshire Housing Partnership.

Contents

Introduction	
Asbestos Management	7
Electrical Safety	10
Fire Safety	13
Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety	16
Legionella Management	19
Lifting Equipment Management	
Monitoring, Review and Evaluation	24
Timeline for the Process	
Outcomes	27
Equality Impact Assessment	

Introduction

- 1. The overall aim of this policy, the associated processes and control documents is to ensure the safety of people living, visiting, and working in properties, owned, or managed by Lincolnshire Housing Partnership (LHP).
- 2. Under this policy, LHP aims to protect the occupiers of its properties, as well as other customers, visitors, colleagues, contractors, and the public, as far as is reasonably practicable, from the risk associated with Asbestos, Legionella, Fire, Lifting Equipment, Gas, Electric, Damp and Mould. From herein within this document, these specific areas of risk shall be collated under the term 'Landlords Building Safety' disciplines.
- 3. This document sets out key policy objectives, control measures and accountabilities for ensuring safety from harm as far as reasonably practicable.
- 4. The following legislation, regulations and guidance relate to Landlords Building Safety management. It is not an exhaustive list, but includes the main regulations, Approved Codes of Practice (ACOPs) and guidance documents that are relevant to this policy:
 - The Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 (HASAWA); is the primary piece of legislation covering occupational health and safety in Great Britain. In particular, Section 2 of the act places a duty on every employer to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, the health, safety, and welfare at work of all their colleagues. Section 3 of the act places a duty on every employer to ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, that persons not in their employment who may be affected are not exposed to risks to their health or safety. This would be anyone visiting the building for example visitors, contractors, or members of the public.
 - The Social Housing (Regulation) Act 2023
 - The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999
 - The Housing Act 2004, which introduced the Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) and the Housing Health and Safety Rating System Regulations 2005.
 - The Landlords and Tenant Act 1985
 - Building Safety Act 2022
 - Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022
 - The Occupiers Liability Act 1957 and 1984
 - Defective Premises Act 1972
 - Management of Housing in Multiple Occupation Regulation 2006 (England)

- IET -Wiring Regulations (BS7671 Current Edition)
- The Electricity at Work Regulations 1989 (EAWR)
- The Building Regulations 2010
- BS 5839: Fire detection and fire alarm systems for buildings
- Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012 (CAR)
- The Reporting of Injuries, Diseases, and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR)
- Control of Substances Hazardous to Health (COSHH) Regulations (as amended) 2002
- Construction Design and Management Regulations (2015)
- ACoP L143 'Managing and working with asbestos' (December 2013)
- HSG 210: 'A task manual for building, maintenance and allied trades of non-licensed asbestos work'
- HSG 264: 'Asbestos: The survey guide'
- HSG 248: 'Asbestos: The analysts' guide for sampling, analysis, and clearance procedures'
- HSG 227: 'A comprehensive guide to managing asbestos in premises.
- HSG 247: 'Asbestos: The licensed contractors guide'
- LGA Fire Safety in Purpose Built Flats
- LACORS Fire Safety Guidance on fire safety provisions for certain types of existing housing
- National Fire Chiefs Council 'Fire Safety in Specialised Housing'
- PAS 79:2020 Fire Risk Assessment. Guidance and a recommended methodology
- Fire Safety Approved Document B
- MHCLG Advice for Building Owners of Multi Story, Multi Occupied Residential Buildings.
- Fire Safety Act 2021
- The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998
- Gas Safety (Installations and Use) Regulations 1998 Approved Code of Practice and Guidance L56 (Current Edition)
- IGEM/G/11 Gas industry unsafe situation procedure
- The Water Supply (Water Fittings) Regulations 1999 S I 1999

- The Water Supply (Water Fittings) (Amendments) Regulations 1999
- Approved Code of Practice (ACOP) L8 'Legionnaires Disease: The Control of Legionella Bacteria in Water Systems' Approved Code of Practice
- HSG 274 Part 2 The control of Legionella bacteria in hot & cold-water systems
- HSG274 Parts 3 the control of Legionella bacteria in other risk systems
- BS8580: 2019 Water quality Risk assessments for Legionella control Code of practice
- BS7592: 2022 Sampling for Legionella bacteria in water systems Code of practice
- Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations (LOLER) 1998
- Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations (PUWER) 1998
- ACoP L113 Safe Use of Lifting Equipment
- The Equality Act 2010
- 5. LHP will meet the regulatory requirements of the Regulator of Social Housing's (RSH) Home Standard, which includes meeting all applicable statutory requirements that provide for the health and safety of our customers in their homes in relation to Landlords Building Safety management.

Regulatory Framework:

The Regulator of Social Housing (RSH) set regulatory standards that define the outcomes that landlords must deliver, using powers under the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.

The RSH expects all landlords to deliver the outcomes of consumer standards set by them which apply to registered providers of social housing. These include both the required outcomes and specific expectations set by RSH within each standard.

Annex 4 - Consumer Standards – Code of Practice. This Code of Practice is issued by the Regulator of Social Housing, under section 195(1) of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 (as amended) (the HRA) and came into effect on 1st April 2024. Section 195(2) of the HRA provides that the regulator may have regard to the Code when considering whether the standards have been met. There are 4 main standards:

- Safety and Quality Standard outcomes about the safety and quality of customers' homes
- Transparency, Influence and Accountability Standard outcomes about how landlords provide information, listen to customers, and act on their

views.

- Neighbourhood and Community Standard outcomes about how landlords work with other organisations to help ensure customers live in safe neighborhoods.
- Tenancy Standard outcomes about how landlords allocate and let homes and manage tenancies.

Safety and Quality Standard:

The Safety and Quality Standard is the main consumer standard relating to the health, safety, and wellbeing of customers within their homes. Within the code of practice this is sub-divided into 5 further areas:

- Stock quality
- Decency
- Health and Safety
- Repairs, maintenance, and planned improvements
- Adaptations
- 6. LHP has a procedure that sets out the responsibilities and processes; the processes that sit behind this document specifically details how this will be achieved.
- 7. The management of Landlords Building Safety management forms part of LHP's Health and Safety Strategy and will be delivered in the format of Plan, Do, Check, Act in order to facilitate continuous improvement. This will specifically identify key accountabilities, which are summarised below and further detailed in the relevant process documents.
- 8. This policy applies to all properties owned and/or managed by LHP. LHP does not hold a duty of care to leaseholders or shared owners for particular areas of Landlords Building Safety management unless agreed differently through a contract. LHPs obligations where third parties manage the premises are in line with the agreements in place with those organisations.

Asbestos Management

- 9. The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Asbestos Management are to:
 - Do all within LHP's control to prevent any person's exposure to Asbestos.
 - Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with asbestos containing materials (ACM).
 - Only use Consultants who hold UKAS accreditation 17020 and 17025 for testing and inspection services relating to asbestos. Only use contractors who are licensed by the Health & Safety Executive for works requiring a License.

- Ensure we have suitable emergency procedures in place to deal with any disturbance of ACMs efficiently.
- For specific works deemed to be "non-licensed," LHP may utilise internally trained, competent operatives. However, a contractor Licensed by the HSE as detailed above will always be the preferred route wherever possible.
- Develop and maintain a 'register' that contains all the assets that LHP is responsible for (whether owned or managed through the maintenance element of a lease). Ensure that this register has a record of the assets that have known or presumed asbestos containing materials, the location and condition of it and whether this asset is 'domestic' or 'non- domestic.' Ensure that any work to ACMs including surveys, removal or remediation is recorded in the register.
- Ensure that all non-domestic areas within the portfolio have been suitably surveyed and adequately risk assessed (including re-inspection to the required frequency) and are "managed" accordingly, in line with CAR 2012 (in particular Regulation 4). Prepare and disseminate an "Asbestos Management Plan" for the portfolio. The plan will clearly indicate any property that was built post 2000, with the assumption that there is no asbestos present in this building.
- Undertake assessments of all known and presumed ACM materials and develop procedures to evaluate the risk and determine the appropriate remedial actions and control measures.
- Monitor the condition of all known ACM materials through our inspection programme carried out in line with the legislation and relevant guidance documents to all ACMs within non-domestic areas and include appropriate procedures to prevent exposure to colleagues, customers, or external contractors to all ACMs within non-domestic areas.
- Act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary work to manage the risk presented by asbestos.
- Ensure ACM information is provided to every person likely to disturb asbestos including building occupiers/customers and anyone undertaking work within our properties.
- Ensure that any unauthorised works to ACMs are brought to the attention of the Compliance Manager so that they can be made safe, and investigations carried out to determine the cause of this to prevent future re-occurrence.
- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge, and training record of those colleagues involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide further training so that they are able to deliver this policy.

10. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Asbestos Management:

Stage: Plan

The **Chief Executive** is the named duty-holder as required in ACoP L143 and has overall <u>accountability</u> for this policy.

The **Executive Director of Property Services** is <u>responsible</u> for ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable key policy objectives and targets of the policy are met and <u>accountable</u> for:

- Overall policy implementation
- Ensuring any dangerous occurrences involving asbestos are investigated and where instances are RIDDOR reportable take appropriate actions.
- Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Corporate **Head of Asset Management** is <u>*responsible*</u> for overall policy implementation and <u>*accountable*</u> for:

• Achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein, including the designing and implementing of associated procedures, employee training, and communication to customers.

The **Compliance Manager** is the 'Appointed Person' as defined in HSG264 and is <u>responsible</u> for:

- Achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein.
- Ensuring the registers are up to date and accurate.
- Undertaking and recording the thorough investigation into any dangerous occurrences.
- Maintaining and updating the asbestos management plan as required.
- 11. The specific requirements of the below roles are further detailed within the Asbestos Management Plan.

Stage: Do

The Compliance Manager, Investment Delivery Manager, Repairs and Servicing Manager, Compliance Team, Customer Services colleagues, and Property Services Operatives have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues also have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The **Compliance Manager**, **Compliance Surveyors**, **Compliance Co-Ordinators** and the **Health and Safety Manager** all have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Stage: Act

The Compliance Manager, Corporate Head of Risk and Assurance and **Performance Manager** all have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Electrical Safety

- 12. The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Electrical Safety Management are to:
 - Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with electrical installations and equipment.
 - Only appoint electrical contractors registered with UKAS accredited competent persons scheme to ensure compliance with Part P of the Building Regulations (members of NICEIC or equivalent).
 - Develop and maintain a 'Register' that contains all the assets that LHP is responsible for (whether owned or managed). Ensure that this Register has a record of the assets where there is an electrical installation and whether this installation is in a communal asset or dwelling.
 - Ensure that the electrical installations contained in the Register are safe by having:
 - A valid Electrical Installation Certificate and a Part P notification document for all new electrical installations.
 - Generally, a valid 'Electrical Installation Condition Report' (EICR) that is no older than 5 years requirements laid out in BS7671 (current edition) for all existing installations, both commercial and domestic areas, whereby all identified Classification Code C1, C2 and FI observations have been rectified and certified with a Satisfactory status accordingly (with the exception of C3 which are reviewed as part of the planned maintenance programme).
 - An Electrical Installation Condition Report (EICR) undertaken prior to a new tenancy (void or mutual exchange) with all identified Classification Code C1, C2 and FI observations rectified and certified accordingly and will generate the issue of a clean certificate. C3s will be reviewed as part of the void process and where practicable will be rectified whilst the property is void.
 - Any electrical equipment (appliances etc) supplied by the organisation verified as safe and fit for continued use, on a risk-based approach as there is no prescribed statutory frequency. For portable equipment this will be done through Portable Appliance Testing (PAT) and where the equipment is a fixed installation this will be done as part of the EICR testing regime.
 - Ensure any defective part of an installation is repaired in line with Repairs Policy and Procedures or renewed in the timescales as defined in the Decent Homes Standard.

- As part of the EICR testing works, upgrade smoke detectors within a property to meet the guidance stated in BS 5839, ensuring that detectors do not exceed their lifecycle stated in the manufacturer's guidance.
- The Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm (Amendment) Regulations 2022 which came into force on 1 October 2022. From this date, all relevant landlords must:

1. Ensure at least one smoke alarm is equipped on each storey of their homes where there is a room used as living accommodation. This has been a legal requirement in the private rented sector since 2015.

2. Ensure a carbon monoxide alarm is equipped in any room used as living accommodation which contains a fixed combustion appliance (excluding gas cookers).

3. Ensure smoke alarms and carbon monoxide alarms are repaired or replaced once informed and found that they are faulty.

- Act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary electrical inspections.
- Ensure that any unauthorised and defective alterations or additions to electrical installations which cannot be disconnected for any reason are identified and brought to the attention of the Electrical Qualified Supervisor.
- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge and experience of those colleagues, contractors and consultants involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide training so that they are able to deliver this policy.
- 13. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Electrical Safety Management:

Stage: Plan

The **Chief Executive** has overall <u>accountability</u> for this policy. The **Executive Director of Property** is <u>responsible</u> for ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable the key policy objectives and targets of the policy are met and <u>accountable</u> for:

• Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Corporate **Head of Asset Management** is <u>*responsible*</u> for overall policy implementation.

The Corporate **Head of Repairs** is <u>responsible</u> for achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein, including the designing and implementing of associated procedures, employee training and communications to customers.

The **Repairs & Servicing Manager** is *responsible* for:

- Achieving the key objectives and targets as set out herein.
- The management of contractors carrying out routine maintenance, testing and remedial works.

And *accountable* for:

• The quality assurance of electrical works carried out by LHP colleagues and contractors to ensure that all works conform to BS 7671 (current edition).

The **Electrical Qualified Supervisor** (QS) is *responsible* for:

• Quality assurance of electrical work carried out by LHP colleagues and contractors and that all works conform to BS 7671 (current edition).

The Compliance Manager is *responsible* for:

- Reviewing the effectiveness and suitability of the policy.
- Reviewing best practice in the sector and forthcoming legislative changes.
- Ensuring that the necessary training for the compliance team has the necessary competency.
- Oversight of the periodic testing register to provide assurance against this policy.

The **Planning Team Leader** is *responsible* for:

- Ensuring the Register is maintained, accurate and up to date with evidence of the most recent EICR available.
- Co-ordinating access into the properties to undertake periodic testing and follow-on actions.
- 14. The specific requirements of the below roles are further detailed within the Electrical Safety Process.

Stage: Do

The Corporate Head of Repairs, Repairs and Servicing Manager, Planned Contracts Manager, Qualified Electrical Supervisor (QS), Planning Team Leader, Servicing Co-Ordinator, Housing Officer, and Customer Service Officer have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues also have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The Compliance Manager, Compliance Co-Ordinator's and Health and Safety Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Stage: Act

The Compliance Manager, Corporate Head of Risk and Assurance and **Performance Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Fire Safety

- 15. The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Fire Safety Management are to:
 - Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with fire safety.
 - Only use suitably competent and accredited contractors to undertake and deliver works towards fire safety. Where works are delivered in-house, LHP will ensure colleagues undertaking fire safety management activities are suitably trained and hold a level of competency to allow them to deliver this.
 - Develop and maintain a register of all fire related assets inclusive of all relevant buildings, passive fire safety assets and active fire safety assets which LHP are responsible for (whether owned or managed). This will be in compliance with all associated fire legislation including:
 - The Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (RRFSO or 'Fire Safety Order').
 - The Fire Safety (England) Regulations 2022
 - The Fire Safety Act 2021
 - Building Safety Act 2022
 - Ensure that all relevant properties have a suitable and sufficient fire risk assessment in place under the requirements of the RRFSO 2005 carried out by a demonstrably competent person with specific skills, knowledge and experience (competency) for that particular building and tenure type. Each assessment must be reviewed periodically by a competent person and when there has been an event or change e.g., change of use of the building, a fire or when it is suspected that the fire risk assessment is no longer valid. Ensure that there is an increased awareness towards fire safety for colleagues, customers, leaseholders and other relevant persons through communication and adequate provision of information which will be made easily understandable.
 - Ensure that there is clarity on what the evacuation strategy is for a building and where there is a "stay safe" policy in place, colleagues and customers are clear on what that means and when they should leave their property.
 - Ensure that the premises are maintained to a suitable and sufficient standard with regards to fire prevention, containment, detection, alarms, means of escape, passive fire arrangements etc. and are subject to maintenance and inspection to confirm that they remain fit for purpose.

- Promote a proactive approach towards fire safety, encouraging a no blame culture towards the reporting and investigating or near misses. LHP will react by investigating instances of fire and false alarms that have occurred, ensuring learning is taken from the findings and communicated accordingly. Where required, the fire risk assessment will be reviewed and updated.
- Undertake a Person-Centered Risk Assessment (PCRA) where requested for either LHP colleagues or customers who may need assistance to identify an event or escape from a building and develop a reasonably practical Personal Emergency Evacuation Plan (PEEP) for buildings managed by LHP and implement accordingly.
- Ensure that fire safety arrangements (passive and active) are considered before any planned maintenance, repair or refurbishment works take place, to ensure that any interim arrangements required, additional protection or ensuring services remain in place are considered in line with Fire and Construction, Design and Management (CDM) legislation and regulations.
- Act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary safety checks. In relation to fire door inspections within individual dwellings, all reasonable endeavours would be made to secure access, to ensure fire doors are inspected.
- Ensure that there is an established working relationship with the Fire and Rescue Service for all areas that LHP operate in, including liaison with the service in the event of a fire incident and subsequent review.
- Ensure that any unauthorised and defective alterations or additions to a building that compromises either the compartmentation or fire safety management put in place are identified and brought to the attention of the Compliance Manager so that they can be made safe.
- Provide LHP colleagues and customers with an effective communication platform to raise any concerns that they may have with regards to fire safety within their properties or buildings, ensuring that these concerns are considered accordingly.
- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge, and experience of those colleagues involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide training so that they are able to deliver this policy.
- 16. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Fire Safety Management:

Stage: Plan

The **Chief Executive** has overall <u>accountability</u> for this policy. The **Executive Director of Property** is <u>responsible</u> for:

• Ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable the key

policy objectives and targets of the policy are met.

• Ensuring that any dangerous occurrences are investigated and where instances are RIDDOR reportable take appropriate actions.

And *accountable* for:

• Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Executive Director of Customers is *responsible* for:

- Ensuring that adequate resources are made available regarding the Housing Management function to ensure that the key policy objectives and targets are met.
- Ensuring that there is active communication with customers in relation to Fire Safety and where they raise concerns, they are listened to and responded to in a timely manner.

The Corporate Head of Asset Management is *responsible* for:

- Overall policy implementation.
- Ensure that the Asset Management team has adequate training and resources to complete the required tasks assigned to them under this policy.

The **Compliance Manager** is *responsible* for:

- Reviewing the effectiveness and suitability of the policy.
- Reviewing best practice in the sector and forthcoming legislative changes.
- Holding the register of qualifying buildings with a valid FRA in place.
- Undertaking and recording the thorough investigation into any dangerous occurrences.
- Ensuring regular liaison with the local Fire & Rescue service to maintain working relationships.

The Corporate Head of Repairs is *responsible* for:

- Ensuring that the actions required by the policy are completed by a competent team member to the required quality standard.
- Ensuring that the maintenance delivery team has adequate training and resources to complete the required tasks assigned to them under this policy.
- 17. The specific requirements of the below roles are further detailed within the Fire Safety Process.

Stage: Do

The Compliance Manager, Repairs and Servicing Manager, Investment Delivery Manager, Development Manager, Corporate Head of Customers,

Compliance Surveyors, Compliance Co- Ordinator's, Servicing Co-Ordinator's, Housing Officers, Wardens and Health and Safety Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues also have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The Compliance Manager, Compliance Surveyors, Compliance Co-Ordinator and Health and Safety Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Stage: Act

The Compliance Manager, Corporate Head of Risk and Assurance and **Performance Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety

18. LHP predominantly has gas as the main source of heating for most homes across the estate. In addition, there are other forms of fossil fuels producing heat and hot water for homes including solid fuel, LPG, oil, and biomass. These are collectively referred to throughout this policy as Gas and Fossil Fuel.

The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety Management are to:

- Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with gas and fossil fuel fired installations.
- Only use suitably competent and Gas Safe, OFTEC or HETAS registered contractors and operatives to carry out such work.
- Develop and maintain a 'Register' that contains all the assets that LHP is responsible for (whether owned or managed). Ensure that this Register has a record of the assets where there is a relevant and/or non-relevant gas fitting as defined in 'The Gas Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998' as amended.
- Develop and maintain a 'Register' that contains all assets which use non-gas fossil fuels to provide heating and/or hot water.
- Ensure that every gas installation contained in the Register is safe by having:
- a valid 'Gas Safe issued works notification' and Benchmark certificate for new installations.
- a valid 'Landlord Safety Gas Record' (LGSR) for existing installations within 12 months of installation or 12 months since the last check, which covers both the safety check requirement of Regulation 36 as well as confirmation that all appliances have been maintained, serviced and a successful tightness test has been carried out on the gas pipework.

- the appropriate commissioning or service record that applies to all other appliances that are not gas fired.
- All defects classified as At Risk (AR) or Immediately Dangerous (ID) dealt with in line with the Gas Industry Unsafe situations procedure (GIUSP) latest edition and defects rectified as soon as is reasonably practicable.
- Ensure that where repairs and/or maintenance is required to gas fired heating appliances, pipe work and flues, this is completed to approved standards and in line with the timescales published in the repairs policy.
- Deal with unsafe situations promptly and in accordance with Gas Industry Unsafe Situations procedure GIUSP latest edition.
- Visual only checks will be carried out on customers' own gas appliances and outcomes recorded on the safety certificate and issued to the resident. Where required, a tenant owned appliance may be serviced to allow for the safety inspection to be completed, to which LHP reserves the right to charge for this. Where the problem is At Risk or Immediately Dangerous, the appliance will be disconnected, and the supply capped off with permission of the tenant, if the tenant refuses this is referred to Cadent Gas, who will cap the gas and charge to the customer.
- Carry out a safety check and produce a valid LGSR or service record document at each change of tenancy or mutual exchange.
- Will act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary gas and heating safety checks. Where a service is completed within 56 days of the due date, the original due date will be used to calculate the 12-month renewal date in line with Gas Safety (installation and use) Regulations 1998 Regulation 36A.
- Where it can be demonstrated that access to a domestic property for servicing activities has historically been challenging, a time delay device may be fitted to encourage the customer to allow access for the heating service to be undertaken.
- Introduce an approach to provide customers with information that raises awareness of gas safety and defines LHP's responsibility and the customer's responsibility.
- Customers should not undertake alterations or additions to the gas or heating installation without obtaining prior landlord consent, which will only be given by a suitably qualified person obtaining prior landlord consent. Regulation 8 prohibits anyone from carrying out any alteration to premises in which a gas fitting or storage vessel is already installed which could compromise gas safety. The regulation also prohibits any work on a gas fitting or associated flue/ventilation system which would result in danger to

any person. Where it is identified that unauthorised and defective alterations or additions to gas installations have been undertaken, suitable measures will be undertaken whilst on site to ensure that the customers are safe; this could include isolating or disconnecting the appliance. This will be brought to the attention of the Heating Supervisor immediately who will agree a course of action with the tenant and recharge for any works undertaken by LHP to bring the appliance back to a safe and compliant working condition.

- LHP will comply specifically with Regulation 36 of GSIUR as amended (duties of a landlord) by ensuring LGSR's have the 9 required salient points completed on each record, issuing on each new LGSR to customers within 28 days of completion, keeping 2 further records after the LGSR has been completed and ensuring work is completed by a Gas Safe registered engineer.
- Ensure void or mutual exchange properties do not pose any danger to workers, customers, passers-by, or the building itself.
- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge, and experience of those colleagues involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide training so that they can deliver this policy.
- 19. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety Management:

The Chief Executive has overall <u>accountability</u> for this policy.

The **Executive Director of Property Services** is <u>responsible</u> for ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable the key policy objectives and targets of this policy are met and <u>accountable</u> for:

• Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Corporate **Head of Asset Management** is <u>*responsible*</u> for overall policy implementation.

The Corporate **Head of Repairs** is <u>responsible</u> for achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein, including the designing and implementing of associated procedures, employee training and communications to customers.

The Repairs & Servicing Manager is *responsible* for:

- Achieving the key objectives and targets as set out herein.
- The management of contractors carrying out routine maintenance, testing and remedial works.

And *accountable* for:

• The quality assurance of works carried out on Gas and Fossil Fuel fired appliances by LHP colleagues and contractors to ensure that all works

conform to the relevant requirements.

The **Heating Supervisor** is <u>responsible</u> for quality assurance of work carried out on Gas and Fossil Fuel fired appliances by LHP colleagues and contractors and that all works conform to the relevant requirements.

The Compliance Manager is *responsible* for:

- Reviewing the effectiveness and suitability of the policy.
- Reviewing best practice in the sector and forthcoming legislative changes.
- Ensuring that the necessary training for the compliance team has the necessary competency.
- Overseeing the asset register of heating appliances and the last service date for all heating systems are registered within the asset management systems.
- Undertaking and recording the thorough investigation into any dangerous occurrences.

The **Planning Team Leader** is *responsible* for:

- Ensuring the Register is maintained, accurate and up to date with evidence of the most recent service documentation available.
- Co-ordinating access into the properties to undertake servicing, maintenance activities and follow-on actions.
- 20. The specific requirements of the below roles are further detailed within the Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety Process.

Stage: Do

The Corporate Head of Repairs, Repairs and Servicing Manager, Gas Supervisor, Planning Team Leader, Servicing Co-Ordinator, Housing Officer, Customer Service Officer, and Investment Delivery Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues also have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The Corporate Head of Asset Management, Compliance Manager, Compliance Co- Ordinator and Health and Safety Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Stage: Act

The **Compliance Manager, Corporate Head of Risk and Assurance** and **Performance Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Legionella Management

21. The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Legionella Management are to:

- Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with water hygiene.
- Only use suitably qualified contractors and consultants that can show accreditation to the Legionella Control Association (LCA).
- Develop and maintain a 'register' that contains all the assets that LHP is responsible for (whether owned or managed) and record within it all activities associated with the control of Legionella retaining records for at least 5 years.
- These records should be retained throughout the period they are current and for at least two years afterwards.
- Carry out a desktop Portfolio Risk Assessment (PRA) for all assets owned or managed by LHP to identify, where practicable, buildings where conditions may be present that encourage Legionella bacteria to multiply and/or disperse and assign the appropriate risk classification to these assets as defined in the Water Hygiene Management Plan.
- Where the portfolio desktop risk assessment confirms a site-based risk assessment is required, LHP will carry out risk assessments (LRAs) which comply with ACoP L8, HSG274 and BS8580 on the assets where required as defined in the Water Hygiene Management Plan to identify and resolve hazards relating to risk of infection.
- Where the risk assessment identifies a reasonably foreseeable risk from legionella bacteria in the water systems then modify any deficient systems and equipment. Where risks cannot be eliminated, LHP will implement a written scheme (including an accurate schematic diagram of the system), and arrange the necessary programme of routine inspection, management, and testing of water systems, where the outcomes from an LRA identifies a reasonably foreseeable risk. Where no reasonably foreseeable risk has been identified, then no further action will need to be taken.
- Prepare and disseminate a "Water Hygiene Management Plan" for the portfolio.
- Ensure that for dwellings left vacant for extended periods of time, a suitable drain-down or flushing management regime is put in place to prevent the potential build-up of risk conditions.
- Act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary inspection, testing and maintenance as defined by the written scheme.
- Introduce an approach to ensuring risk information is provided to those affected including customers and stakeholders.
- Ensure that any unauthorised and defective alterations or additions to water installations, which are identified, are brought to the attention of the

Compliance Manager so that they can be made safe.

- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge, and experience of those colleagues involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide training so that they are competent to deliver this policy.
- 22. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Legionella Management:

The **Chief Executive** is the named duty-holder as required in ACOP L8 and has overall accountability for this policy.

The Executive Director of Property is *responsible* for:

• Ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable the key policy objectives and targets of the policy to be met.

and *accountable* for:

- Overall policy implementation.
- Ensuring any dangerous occurrences involving water hygiene are investigated and where instances are RIDDOR reportable take appropriate actions, including reporting 'outbreaks' to Public Health England.
- Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Corporate **Head of Asset Management** is the 'Deputy Responsible Person' as defined in ACOP L8 and is *responsible* for:

- Overall policy implementation.
- Carrying out the duties of the Responsible Person when this person is unavailable.

and <u>accountable</u> for:

• Achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein, including the designing and implementing of associated procedures, employee training, and communication to customers.

The **Compliance Manager** is the 'Responsible Person' as defined in ACOP L8 and is <u>responsible</u> for:

- Achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein.
- Identifying and authorising work to ensure risk relating to Legionella is managed effectively.
- Undertaking and recording the thorough investigation into any dangerous occurrences.

and <u>accountable</u> for:

• Ensuring the Registers are up to date and accurate.

23. The specific requirements of the below roles are further detailed within the Water Hygiene Management Plan.

Stage: Do

The Compliance Manager, Investment Delivery Manager, Repairs and Servicing Manager, Compliance Surveyor, Compliance Co-Ordinators, Housing Colleagues and Wardens have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues also have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The **Compliance Manager, Compliance Surveyor, Compliance Co-Ordinator** and **Health and Safety Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy,

Stage: Act

The **Compliance Manager**, **Head of Risk and Assurance** and **Performance Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Lifting Equipment Management

- 24. The key objectives LHP will aim to fulfil for Lifting Equipment Management are to:
 - Appoint persons with clear roles and responsibilities to manage the risks associated with lifts.
 - Only use suitably qualified contractors and consultants.
 - Develop and maintain a 'register' that contains all the assets that LHP is responsible for (whether owned or managed). Ensure that this register has a record of the assets that have a lift installed and whether this installation is in a communal asset or dwelling.
 - Ensure that all lifting equipment has 'Thorough Examinations' in accordance with LOLER 1998. To meet this requirement, LHP interpret this as any lifting equipment that is installed for the use of its colleagues or the customers' colleagues. Where a Thorough Examination has not been carried out and the LOLER 1998 regulations apply, action will be taken to minimise this risk as far as practicable as outlined in the Lift Management Procedure.
 - Recognise that Domestic Lifting Equipment which is not used by colleagues does not fall under the LOLER 1998 legislation. However, there is a requirement to meet our obligations under HASWA, Section 3.1 and alongside a robust Servicing Regime, therefore the Thorough Examinations as defined by LOLER will be completed on an annual basis by a competent contractor and will be used to demonstrate that we meet these obligations in this area.

- Carry out the ongoing maintenance and examinations of equipment, where LHP currently have the obligation to do so. For any new installation where LHP does not have any obligations towards its maintenance, the client shall have full responsibility for all ongoing maintenance and examination activities in that item of equipment. Should the customer wish for LHP to manage this on their behalf, an agreed package shall be put in place upon expiry of the equipment's warranty period.
- Prioritise & complete corrective actions identified as part of the thorough examination or regular maintenance visits within defined timeframes.
- Keep records of the control measures and activities.
- Ensure that all lifts have been serviced and maintained in the timescales as defined in the Lift Procedure with the target and actual dates these are completed in the register.
- Remove lifts from domestic dwellings when the incoming customer does not require one; if the customer does then we will carry out a 'Thorough Examination' of all lifts in dwellings at change of tenancy.
- Act appropriately and in accordance with regulatory and legal requirements in gaining access to the premises to undertake necessary inspection, servicing, and maintenance of lifts.
- Introduce an approach to ensuring risk information is provided to those affected including customers and stakeholders.
- Ensure that any unauthorised and defective alterations or additions to lifts, which are identified, are brought to the attention of the Compliance Manager so that they can be made safe.
- Annually review the job profiles, skills, knowledge, and experience of those colleagues involved in the delivery of this policy and, where necessary, provide training so that they are able to deliver this policy.
- 25. The following accountabilities are applied to LHP's Lifting Equipment Management:

Stage: Plan

The **Chief Executive** has overall <u>accountability</u> for this policy. The **Executive Director of Property** is <u>responsible</u> for:

• Ensuring that adequate resources are made available to enable the key policy objectives and targets of the policy are met.

and is *accountable* for:

- Overall policy implementation.
- Ensuring any dangerous occurrences involving LOLER installations are investigated and where instances are RIDDOR reportable take appropriate

actions.

• Being designated as the 'Accountable Person' in line with the requirements detailed in the Accountable Person Policy.

The Corporate Head of Asset Management is *responsible* for:

• Overall policy implementation.

and is *accountable* for:

• Achieving the key policy objectives and targets as set out herein, including the designing and implementing of associated procedures, employee training, and communication to customers.

The **Compliance Manager** is *responsible* for:

- Achieving the key policy objective and targets as set out herein.
- Ensuring the registers are up to date and accurate.
- 26. The specific requirements of the above roles are further detailed within the Lifting Equipment Management Process

Stage: Do

The Compliance Manager, Compliance Contracts Team Leader, Compliance Surveyor, Compliance Co-Ordinator, Investment Delivery Manager, Lettings Manager and Housing Colleagues have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

All colleagues have a responsibility under this section of the policy.

Stage: Check

The Compliance Manager, Compliance Contracts Team Leader, Compliance Surveyor, Compliance Co-Ordinator and Health and Safety Manager have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Stage: Act

The **Compliance Manager**, **Head of Risk and Assurance** and **Performance Manager** have specific responsibilities towards the delivery of this section of the policy.

Monitoring, Review and Evaluation

- 27. LHP will monitor implementation of this policy using a set of measures that show performance against regulatory requirements. Further measures of performance shall be used at best practice level; details of this can be found in the relevant process documents for each area. These policy level measures are set out in the tables below:
- 28. Asbestos Management

Regulatory Measure	Target	leporting Interval	Reviewed by
% of known non-domestic areas surveyed with a management type survey	100%	Monthly	Compliance Manager – Weekly
% of surveyed areas with asbestos present with asbestos management plan in place	100%		Corporate Management
% of known non-domestic areas with re-inspection carried out within the timescales detailed in the risk assessment	100%	Monthly	Team – Monthly Board - Quarterly

29. Electrical Safety

Best Practice Measure	Target	leporting Interval	Reviewed by
% of properties domestic and communal spaces with satisfactory EICR undertaken within past 5 years	100%	Monthly	Head of Repairs & Maintenance/R&M Manager - Weekly Directors – Monthly Board - Quarterly

30. Fire Safety Management

Regulatory Measure	Target	leporting Interval	Reviewed by
% of properties with a valid Fire Risk Assessment in place where required under the RRFSO	100%	Monthly	Compliance Manager - Weekly
•			Directors - Monthly Board - Quarterly
umber of overdue high- risk ctions arising from a Fire Risk Zero Month		Monthly	Compliance Manager - Weekly
Assessment			Directors - Monthly Board - Quarterly

31. Gas & Fossil Fuel Safety

Regulatory Measure	Target	leporting	Reviewed by
--------------------	--------	-----------	-------------

		Interval	
% gas installations with an inspection carried out within 365 days of previous and valid LGSR/Building Regulations Completion certificate produced. Including both domestic and commercial properties.	100%	Monthly	Head of Repairs and Maintenance - Weekly Directors - Monthly Board - Quarterly

32. Legionella Management

Regulatory Measure	Target	leporting Interval	Reviewed by
% of known risks which have been assessed	100%		
% assets which have been reviewed in accordance with level of risk and appropriate timescales	100%	Monthly	Compliance Manager – Weekly Corporate Management Team - Monthly
% of control measures completed within relevant timescales	100%		Board - Quarterly

33. Lifting Equipment Management

Regulatory Measure	Target	leporting Interval	Reviewed by
% of lifts with LOLER inspection carried out within 6 months of last inspection	100%		Compliance Manager - Weekly
Number of corrective actions completed after target date	Zero	Monthly	Corporate Management Team- Monthly Board - Quarterly

Timeline for the Process

- 34. In line with the requirements of the assurance framework, where necessary individual sections of this policy have been reviewed and approved by a Third Party. All feedback and comments provided have been reflected within this policy.
- 35. The processes that sit behind this policy have been created in their draft format

and are all currently at different stages of being reviewed for approval by CLT.

36. This policy shall be reviewed on an annual basis, unless there is a significant change in legislation that shall require any section of this policy to be updated.

Outcomes

- 37. By adopting this policy, it shall ensure that LHP's homes and buildings are safe for our customers, their visitors, our colleagues, and the general public.
- 38. This policy shall achieve compliance with the legislative requirements, with LHP also working towards achieving Best Practice methods within the sector. In doing so, LHP shall achieve its corporate objectives and deliver Excellent Service for our customers.

Equality Impact Assessment

Landlords Building Safety Compliance Policy				
Provide a brief summary of the aims and main activities of the initiative (bullet points):				
The overall aim of this policy is to ensure the safety for people living and working in properties, owned, and/or managed by Lincolnshire Housing Partnership.				
Completed By:Danny Wyer – Interim Corporate Head of Property		Date:	11 th October 2024	

Guidelines: Things to consider

- Where a negative (i.e., adverse) impact is identified, it may be appropriate to make a full EIA (see Stage 2), or, as important, take early action to redress this – e.g. by abandoning or modifying the initiative. NB If the initiative contravenes equality legislation, it must be abandoned or modified.
- Where an initiative has a positive impact on groups/community relations, the EIA should make this explicit, to enable the outcomes to be monitored over its lifespan.
- Where there is a positive impact on particular groups, does this mean there could be an adverse impact on others, and if so, can this be justified? e.g. Are there other existing or planned initiatives which redress this?
- It may not be possible to provide detailed answers to some of these questions at the start of the initiative. The EIA may identify a lack of relevant data, and that data-gathering is a specific action required to inform the initiative as it develops, and also to form part of a continuing evaluation and review process.
- It is envisaged that it will be rare for full impact assessments to be required. Usually, where there are particular problems identified in the screening stage, it is envisaged that changing the approach at this stage, and/or setting up a monitoring/evaluation system to review a policy's impact over time will tackle the problem.

STAGE 1: SCREENING

This stage establishes whether a proposed initiative will have an impact from an equality perspective on any particular group of people or community – i.e. on the grounds of race, religion/faith/belief, gender (including transgender), sexual orientation, age, disability, or whether it is "equality neutral" (i.e. have no effect either positive or negative).

Q 1. Who will benefit from this initiative? Is there likely to be a positive impact on specific groups/communities (whether or not they are the intended beneficiaries), and if so, how? Or is it clear at this stage that it will be equality 'neutral' i.e., will have no particular effect on any group? *Please consider all aspects of Diversity including as a minimum: Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity, Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality*

This policy will benefit all customers and future customers of Lincolnshire Housing Partnership. Specific areas, such as Lifting Equipment, will be particularly relevant to older groups and groups with a disability or impairment.

Q 2. Is there likely to be an adverse impact on one or more minority/underrepresented or community group as a result of this initiative? If so, who may be affected and why: Or is it clear at this stage that it will be equality 'neutral'? *Please consider all aspects of Diversity including as a minimum:*

Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity, Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality

No single group will be adversely affected by this policy and its implementation. The policy aims to ensure that all customers, visitors, and our colleagues are safe within properties LHP are responsible for.

Q 3. Is there sufficient data on the target beneficiary groups/communities? Are any of these groups under or overrepresented? Do they have access to the same resources? What are your sources of data and are there any gaps? *Please consider all aspects of Diversity including as a minimum:*

Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity, Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality Information on customers and applicant's families from tenancy profiling and the data held on database.

Q 4. Outsourced services – if the initiative is partly or wholly provided by external organisations / agencies, please list any arrangements.

you plan to ensure that they promote equality and diversity. Please consider all aspects of

Diversity including as a minimum: Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity, Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality

This is an internal policy, and we are responsible for its implementation and colleagues receive training on equality, diversity, and inclusion.

Q 5. Is the impact of the initiative (whether positive or negative) significant enough to warrant a full impact assessment – see guidance? If not, will there be monitoring and review to assess the level of impact over a period of time? *Please consider all aspects of Diversity including as a minimum: Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity, Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality*

We do not perceive any negative impact that would warrant a full EIA. Should any negative impact be highlighted through implementation, the policy and EIA will be reviewed.

Q 6. <u>To be completed at six monthly review Detail</u> actions taken to assess the level of impact over a period of time, or to address any gaps in data. *Please consider all aspect of Diversity including as a minimum: Age, Disability, Gender/Transgender, Race/Ethnicity,*

Religion/Faith/Belief, Sexuality

N/A